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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors have the pleasure of presenting the éih Annual Report of the Company
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts, Auditors’ Report and the Report on the business
and operations of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2022,

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
The financial highlights for the year under review is as under:
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2020-21 2021-22
Income from Operation (A) 7.09.39,319 15,65,61,993
Other Income (B) . 32,84,356 35,29,137
Total Income (A+B) 7,42,23,675 16,00,91,130
Operating Expenses 16,35,26,890 17.87,96,910
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation , provisions for tax (8.93,03,215) (1,87,05,780)
Depreciation 2,27,13,919 29.92,4671
Provision for Tax - -
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (11,20,17,134) (4.86,30,451)
Appropriations - -
Balance carried fo Balance Sheet (11,20,17,134) (4,86,30,451)

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The company confinues to maintain its leadership position amongst the TReDS exchanges with
highest cumulative throughput for the 5th consecutive year reflecting consistent growth. In FY22, the
company closed at Rs. 14,650 crs which was the highest among all TREDs participants, The platform
has scaled exponentially with participation from more than 13,345 MSME sellers, 1023 buyers, 45
financiers; and has successfully processed discounting of 10,00,000+ MSME invoices, which shows
the growing adoption of TReDS model amongst MSMEs.

During FY'22, Invoicemart recorded an income from operations of INR 15.65¢rs compared to INR
7.09crin FY'21. This growth is largely attributed to increase in fransaction revenues. Net loss after tax
in FY '22 reduced fo INR 4.86crs compared to INR 11.20crs in FY'21.

The Company has been awarded “Best Fintech of the Year — Enabling MSME financing solution” by
ASSOCHAM at its 8th MSME Excellence Awards & Summit. FY22 has been a year of many milestones,
from being the 15t platform to cross Rs. 27000+ crs throughput, 15 platform to complete registration
of top 1000+ of India's top Corporates/PSUs, 1t platform to facilitate financing throughput of INR
2000+ crs in a month (March 22).

Some of the emerging frends are:

NBFC factors were allowed to come as financiers on the TReDS platform,.
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b. The Insurance Regulatory and Development authority (IRDAI) has towards Q2FY22
announced revised guidelines for Trade credit insurance (TCl)which has come into effect
from 1st November 2021. The revised guidelines have opened opportunity for allowing single
invoice covers through bill discounting / factoring only ‘on Invoice Discounting e-Platforms
such as TReDS.

c. The platform has successfully started filing Assignment of Receivables(AORs) on behalf of the
financiers through CERSAL.

With on tap authorisation to entiites for TReDS, the space may see addition of more players.
Addtionally increase is competition will further impact spreads. Continued efforts are being made
foinvest in cutting edge technology to strengthen its processes and controls, drive financial inclusion
and reaching out fo more and more MSMEs, enabling better access to credit for MSMEs on the
platform.

MSME financing through TReDS is now reaching new heights and Invoicemart is proud to lead the
way. The company will continue to focus on granular business and develop/deepen relationship
with important stakeholders. The government with the support of RBI has been promoting TReDS as
an effective tool to address the working capital woes of MSMEs.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
DIVIDEND:

Your Directors have not recommended payment of any dividend on equity shares, for the financial
year ended as on 315t March, 2022.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE:

During the financial year under review, the Company did not transfer any amount to General
Reserves, .

SHARE CAPITAL:
During the year under review, there has been no fresh infusion of capital in the Company

The total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company, as on 31st March 2022 stands at Rs. 65
crores.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which occurred between the end of the Financial Year 2021-22 of the Company to which
the Findncial Statements relate and the date of this Report,

ANNUAL RETURN:

In accordance with the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, read with Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return, under Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, can be
accessed on the website of the Company at https://www.invoicemart.com/diclosure.
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143 (12) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013:

There was no occurrence of fraud pursuant to Section 143 (12) of The Companies Act, 2013.
This is also being supported by the report of the auditors of the company as no fraud has been
reported in their Report for the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2022.

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATION OR
ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE AUDITOR IN HIS REPORT:
The Audit Report for FY 2021-22, does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has formulated a Risk Management Policy fo identify and mitigate the risks. Major
risks identified by the management are: Strategic & Business Environment Risk, Participants Risk,
Operational Risk, Information Security & IT Risk, Financial And Capital Erosion Risk, People Risk, Legall
and reputational risk. Mitigation measures against each kind of risk has been strategized which is
tfracked on an ongoing basis and presented before Risk Management Committee in every meeting.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:
The provisions of the Companies Act 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are not
applicable to your company as yet.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors
(SS-1) and the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings ($8-2) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, from time to time.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented
by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material observation has been
received from the Statutory Auditors of the Company for inefficiency orinadequacy of such controls.
These internal financial controls help in safeguarding of assets, prevention and detection of frauds
and/or errors, maintaining the accuracy and completeness of the accounting and financial records.
These controls help in the timely preparation of transparent, complete and accurate financial
information and statements as per the laid down accounting standards and principles.

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY:

The company has formulated a Whistleblower Policy to ensure highest degree of transperancy,
intregity, accountability.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,PROHIBITION &
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company is committed to providing a safe and conducive work environment to its employees
and has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed
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pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013,

COST AUDIT:
The Cost Audit was not applicable to the Company during the year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
During the year under review:
i. Pursuant fo the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of

Directors (the NRC), the Board approved the re-appointment of Shri Rakesh Makhija and
Shri Dipak Banerjee as Independent Directors of the Company, for their second term as
such, with effect from 28th July, 2021 up to 27th July, 2024 (both days inclusive), after
taking info account the outcome of their performance evaluation. The said re-
appointment was approved by the Shareholders of the Company at the 8t Extra
Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 13th August, 2021, by means of a
Special Resolution. During the said period, Shri Rakesh Makhija and Shri Dipak Banerjee
will not be liable to retire by rotation, in terms of the provisions of Section 149 (13) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

ii. Shri Pankaj Mittal (DIN: 07975601), Director of the Company, resigned from the Board of
Directors of the Company with effect from close of business hours on 30t November,
2021. The Board of Directors placed on record their warm appreciation for valuable
contribution made by him during his tenure as a Non Executive Director.

i Pursuant to recommendation of the NRC, Shri Aninda Chatterjee (DIN: 01760865} was
appointed as an Additional Non Executive Director of the Company with effect from 3rd
December, 2021 till the date of ensuing General Meeting, who is also liable to retire by
rotation. The Company has received from him declaration stating that he is not
disqualified to be appointed as a director of the Company in terms of Section 164(1) of
the Companies Act 2013 and hence members are requested to consider his
appointment in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year, no other changes took place in the composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company and the composition of the Board of Directors is in compliance with the applicable norms.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules made
thereunder, Shri Rajiv Anand (DIN 02541753) and Shri Neeraj Gambhir (DIN 00257375) shall retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-
appointment as Directors of the Company.

Resolution(s) in respect of appointment / re-appointfment of the Directors, as aforesaid, have been
included in the Notice convening the éth Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board has formed an opinion that the Independent Directors who have been appointed / re-
appointed, have the integrity, expertise and experience (including proficiency), which is beneficial
to the business interest of the Company.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE:

Both the Independent Directors of the Company have given their respective declarations stating
that they meet the criteria prescribed for independence under the applicable laws and in the
opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors meet the said criteria.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Shri Prakash Sankaran, Managing Director & CEQ, Shri Vijay Dube, Chief Financial Officer and Smt
Meenakshi Agarwal, Company Secretary, are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, as
defined in Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year, no changes took place in the composition of the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company.

PARTICULARS OF MEETINGS:

During the year, the number of Board and Committee Meetings convened are as follows:

Sr. No. | Type of Meeting Number of
meetings
1 Board Meeting B 4
2 Audit Committee Meeting 4
3 Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting ]
4 Risk Management Committee Meeting 3
] Meeting of Independent Directors 1
6 General Meeting (including Extra — Ordinary General Meeting) 2

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013. -

BOARD MEETING:
The Board comprises of eight (8) members, of which two (2) are Independent Directors and five (5)

are Non-Executive Directors. During the financial year 2021-22, the Board met seven (4) times on 14t
April, 2021, 14 July, 2021, 11th October, 2021 and 14th January, 2022,

Date and attendance of the meeting Attendance
Name of the Director

14.04.2021 | 14.07.2021 | 11.10.2021 | 14.01.2022 (in %)

Shri Rajiv Anand Present Present Present Present 100%
Shri Rakesh Makhija Present Present Present Present 100%
Shri Dipak Kumar Present Present Present Present 100%
Banerjee

Shri Himadri Chatterjee Present Present Present Present 100%
Shri Vinaya Varma Present Present Present Present 100%
Shri Pankaj Mittal Present Present Absent - 67%

(Resigned w.ef. 30t
November, 2021)

Shri Prakash Sankaran Present Present Present Present 100%
Shri Neeraj Gambhir Present Present Present Present 100%
Shri Aninda Chatterjee - - - Present 100%
(Appointed w.e.f.

03.12.2021)
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The Company and its Board has constituted a set of independent, qualified and focused
Committees of the Board constituting Directors of the Company. These Board Committees have
specific terms of reference/scope to focus effectively. Currently the Board has three (3} committees
i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Commmittee and Risk Management
Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee comprises of three (3) members, of which two (2) are Independent Directors.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Committee held four (4) meetings on 14t April, 2021, 14th July,
2021, 11 October, 2021 and 14t January, 2022:

Date and attendance of the meeting % of
14.04.2021 | 14.07.2021 | 11.10.2021 | 14.01.2022 attendance

Name of the Director

Shri Rakesh Makhija Present Present Present Present 100%
Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee Present Present Present Present 100%
Shri Neeraj Gambhir Present Present Present Present 100%

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of Four (4) members, of which two (2) are
Independent Directors. During the financial year 2021-22 the Committee held one (1) meeting on

14t April, 2021
Name of the Director Date and attendance of the meeting % of attendance
14.04.2021
Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee Present 100%
Shri Rakesh Makhija Present 100%
Shri Himadri Chatterjee Present 100%
Shri Vinaya Varma Present 100%

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

The Risk Management Committee comprises of Four (4) members, of which two (2) are Independent
Directors. During the financial year 2021-22, the Committee held three (3) meetings on 14t July,
2021, 11t October, 2021 and 14t January, 2022:

Date and attendance of the meeting % of
attendance
Name of the Director 14.07.2021 11.10.2021 14.01.2022
Shri Rakesh Makhija Present Present Present 100%
Shri Dipak  Kumar Present Present Present 100%
Banerjee
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Shri Himadri Chatterjee Present Present Present 100%
Shri Neeraj Gambhir Present Present Present 100%

BOARD EVALUATION:

The performance evaluation of Board, its Committees, Chairman and Individual Directors was done
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the relevant Rules made
thereunder.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is the nodal agency for conducting the said
performance evaluation. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee approved the manner for
conducting the said performance evaluation, determined the criteria for the same and appointed
an Independent external agency to administer the same.

The process was carried out by feedback survey from each Directors covering Board functioning
such as composition of Board and its Committees, experiences, competencies, governance issues
efc. Separate process was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors which
included the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as attendance,
confribution at the meeting etc. The Directors evaluation results reflected the overall engagement
of the Board and its Committee with the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit pursuant to Section 73
and Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014,

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTFLOWS:

Information as per Section 134(3) (m) of the Act relating to the Conservation of Energy and
Technology Absorption is not given since the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing
activity.

During the year under review, the Company has not earned any foreign exchange. The foreign
exchange outgo during the year amounted to Rs. NIL

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186:

Information as per Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the particulars of loans,
guarantees or investment under Section 186 is not applicable to the company as it has not made
any Loans, Guarantees or Investments covered under Section 186 of the Act.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES UNDER SUB - SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 188:

Information as per Section 134(3}(h} of the Act relating to the particulars of Contracts or
Arrangements with Related Parties under Sub - Section (1) of Section 188 is as mentioned below:-

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm'’s length
basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant Related Party
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Transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee/Board of Directors for
approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are
foreseen and repetitive in nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval
so granted are audited and a statement giving details of all Related Party Transactions are placed
before the Audit Committee.

None of the Directors have any pecuniary relationship or transactions vis-&-vis the Company. Form
for disclosure of particulars of contfracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC — 2 is enclosed herewith as Annexure = A to this
report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

The statement containing particulars of employees required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule
5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable to the Company.

POLICY OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in compliance with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto as amended from time
fo time. The policy shall apply to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and
other employees of the Company. The Policy laid down the roles of the Committee, criteria for
appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and parameters for
determining the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and Senior Managerial
Personnel of the Company. Nomination and Remuneration policy of the company has also been
uploaded on the - website and can be accessed with this  weblink:

w.invoicemart.com/Upload/pdf/NRC Policy.nd

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN (ESOP)

Axis bank (Bank) has issued Employee Stock Options (ESOP) to employees of A.Treds Ltd. In the
month of April, 2021 under ESOP scheme -Grant XXVII of Axis Bank Ltd. The objective of the said
ESOS is fo enhance employee motivation, enable employees to participate, directly or indirectly,
in the long-term growth and financial success of the Company, fo act as a retention mechanism
by enabling employee participation in the business of the Company as its active stakeholder and
to usher an ‘owner-manager' culture and to achieve greater synergy between the Company and
the Bank.

RBI has issued clarification for all private banks on 30th August, 2021, to value all share-linked
instruments under Fair value method using Black-Scholes model. Above clarification applies for all
share linked instruments issued on or after 1st April 2021. Pursuant fo the above, the Bank has
recommended allocation of ESOP charges to all subsidiaries, for options issued to subsidiary
employees post 1st April 2021.
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In terms of the said ESOS, Bank has issued sum of 29,800 options to employees of the company. The
price of the said ESOP has been calculated as per the Black-Scholes Method which has been
certified by an independent valuer. The eligibility and number of stock options to be granted to
such eligible employees is determined on the basis of the outcome of their performance
evaluation. The said stock options were granted subject to standard vesting and other conditions
as set out in the respective ESOS of the Bank.

As of 31st March, 2022, no stock options have been exercised and hence the entire balance of
29,800 options remdin unexercised.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant fo sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby
state and confirm that;

I Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

Il.  The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a frue and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company atf the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period.

ll.  the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

V. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

V.  the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

VI.  the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS:
STATUTORY AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and
Audifors) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai (301003E/E300005) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
upto the conclusion of 6 Annual General Meeting.

Since their ferm is expiring in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, offer themselves for re-appointment and for this purpose they have
provided a cerfificate that they satisfy the criteria provided under Section 141 of Companies Act,
2013. The members are required to consider their re-appointment for a further period of 4 years til
the conclusion of tenth Annual General Meeting.

INTERNAL CUM CONCURRENT AUDITORS:
The Board of Directors had appointed M/s. RVA & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai

(Firm Registration No: 115003W), as the Internal cum Concurrent Auditors of the Company to
undertake the Internal cum Concurrent Audit of the Company for the financial year under review.
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SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

The Company had appointed M/s. Martinho Ferrao & Associates, Company Secretaries, Mumbai as
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
financial year under review.

The secretarial audit of the Company was conducted in respect of the matters as prescribed in the
said Rules and set out in the Secretarial Audit Report, for the financial year 2021-22.

There are no quadlifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Secretarial Auditor of the
Company, in its report.

OTHERS

1. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the period under review are revised
as per the new format of Schedule Il as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

2. No application has been made nor any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year under review.

3. NoLoan has been taken from any bank or financial institution and hence there are no details
of valuation which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8(5)(xii) of the Companies
(Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021.
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from Axis Bank Limited and Mjunction Services Limited. Your Directors would like to place on record
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P

Rajiv rakash Sankaran
Ch rmurybﬁ: 02541753) Managing Director & CEO (DIN: 08581871)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19.04.2022
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MARTINHO FERRAQO & ASSOCIATES ﬂs

Campany Secretaries
Level 3, Office # 301, Dhun Building, 23/25 Janmabhoomi Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001

Tel: +91 22 2202 4366 Email: mferraocs@yahoo.com Website : www.csmartinhoandassociates.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

A.TREDS LIMITED

Axis House, C-2 Wadia International Centre,
P B Marg, Worli, Mumbai 400025

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by A.TREDS LIMITED (hereinafter called
“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.

We have examined the papers, minute books, forms, returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company provided to us through electronic mode for the financial year
ended on 31 March, 2022. Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t March,
2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by Company for the financial year ended on 31%t March, 2022 according
to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder; - Not applicable

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder- Not
Applicable
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings; - Not Applicable

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998.

(vi) We have also examined the compliances of the provisions of the following other laws
applicable specifically to the Company wherein we have also relied on the compliance
certificates issued by the head of the respective departments in addition to the checks
carried out by us:

1) RBI Guidelines

2) Payment and Settlement System Act, 2007

3) Factoring Regulation Act, 2011

4) Prevention of Money Laundering, 2002

5) The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006
6) Information Technology Act, 2000

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (S5-1 &
5§-2)

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges. (Not
applicable as it is an unlisted Company)




Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and its authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit we hereby report that in our opinion during the period under review the
Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc.

We further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company as on the date of this report is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

2. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

3. All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried out with requisite
majority;

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that there are following major events in the Company during the period
under review:
1. Resolutions passed in Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 24 May,
2021, for below mentioned matters:
a. Re-appointment of Shri Vinaya Varma (DIN 07527550) as a director.
b. Re-appointment of Shri Himadri Chatterjee (DIN 07455079) as a director.
c. Approval of remuneration of Managing Director & CEO for the financial year
commencing on 1#tApril, 2021 upto 31**March, 2022
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2. Resolutions passed in Eighth Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on
13™ August, 2021, for below mentioned matters:
a. Re-appointment of Shri Rakesh Makhija (DIN 00117692) as an Independent Director.
b. Re-appointment of Shri Dipak Banerjee (DIN 00028123) as an Independent Director.

For Martinho Ferrao & Associates

Com prqy Secretaries
\

Y,

Martinho Ferrao
Proprietor
F.C.5. No. 6221 C. P. No. 5676
UDIN: F006221D000026065

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 06t April, 2022
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This report is to be read with our letter which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report

To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members,
A.TREDS LIMITED

Our report is to be read along with this letter,

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The minutes, documents, records and other information checked for the purpose of audit were
received from the Company in soft copy and through electronic mail due to the lockdown
mandates on account of the outbreak of Covid-19.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

For Martinho Ferrao & Associates

Compa nyecretaries

Proprictor \\;\
F.C.S. No. 6221 C. P. No.

UDIN : F006221D000026065

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 06" April, 2022
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FORM AOC -2

ANNEXURE- A

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Secfion 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arra ngements entered into by the Company with

related parties referred to in sub - section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or fransactions not at arm's length basis

a) | Name (s) of the related party and nature NIL
of relationship

b) | Nature NIL
of contracts/arrangements/transactions

c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / NIL
transactions

d) | Salient terms of the confracts or NIL
arrangements  or transactions including
the value, if any

e) | Justification for entering into such NIL
confracts or arrangements or transactions

f) | Date (s) of approval by the Board NIL

g} | Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

h) | Date on which the special resolution was NIL
passed in general meeting as required
under first proviso fo Section 188

2. Details of material confracts or arrangement or fransactions at arm’s length basis

al| Name (s) of the related party and nature of 1. Axis Bank Limited (Common
relafionship director /Holding Company)
2. Mjunction Services Limited
(Investing Company)
b)| Nature of 1. Fixed Deposit & Interest
confracts/arrangements/ fransactions from Fixed Deposit




Operating
(Transaction  fees
Onboarding fees)
Reimbursement

Expenses

Expenses (RAC

charges),
Expenses, ESOP cost,
Miscellaneous

Expenses (Mediclaim &
GLT Insurance}, NACH

charges, file processing

charges)

c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / 1) Continuous
fransactions 2) Continuous

d)| Salient terms of the confracts or As per Financial Statements
arrangements or fransactions including the
value, if any

e) | Date (s) of approval by the Board, if any 23rd January, 2017

f) | Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

For A.TREDS Limited

Rajiv Andn
Chairman (DIN;/02541753)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19th April, 2022

gy o

rakash Sankaran :
Managing Director & CEO (DIN: 08581871)

Income

(Deputation
Cost, Rent, Software

Preliminary




IN

DICEMART

x15 Bank ar

h__D A joint v

Form No. MGT- 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 315t March, 2022

[Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN

U74999MH2016PLC 281452

Registration Date

239 May 2016

Name of the Company

A.TREDS Limited

Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any

iv. | Category / Sub- Public Unlisted Company
Category of the
Company
v. | Address of the Axis House, C-2, Wadia International Centre,
Registered office and P. B. Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400 025,
contact details Maharashira, India.
Telephone No - 022 24251840
Email id - meenakshi.agarwal@invoicemart.com
vi. | Whether listed No
company
vil. | Name, Address and KFin Technologies Limited

Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad 500032
Telephone No - 040-6716 1603

Email id -~ compliance.corp@kfintech.com

Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities confributing 10%

or more of the total turnover of the company shall

Receivable Discounting System
under Payment and Settlements

Auxiliary to Financial
intermediation

be stated:-
Sr. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
No main products/ services Product/ service he Company
1. | Setting up and operating of Trade | 67110 — Activities 100%

Systems Act, 2007.

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES::

Trishul, 3@ Floor, Opp

Sr. Name and address CIN/GLN Holding/ | %of shares |Applicable
No of the Subsidiary held Section
Company /
Associate
T Axis Bank Limited L65110GI1993PLC 0207 69 Holding 67.00 %* 2(4¢)

Samartheshwar
Temple, Law Garden
Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad -
380006

S

1\_!\‘;

\\\f_ ,.\ :

A.-TREDS Ltd. | A Joint Venture of Axis Bank Limited and
Corporate Office: 11" Floor, A3, AsharIT Park, Road No. 16Z
Registered Office: Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound, P B Marg,

mjunction services limited | www.invoicemart.com

CIN —U74999MH2016PLC281452

» Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane (West) Tel: 022 6235 7300
Worli, Mumbai — 400025 Tel: 022 43252525
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Axis Capital Limited
Axis House, 8th floor,
Wadia International
Cenfre, Pandurang
Budhkar Marg, Worli,
Mumbai - 400025

US1900MH2005PLC 157853

Group
Company

NIL

Axis Finance Limited
Axis House, Ground
floor, Wadia
International Centre,
Pandurang Budhkar
Marg, Worli, Mumbai
— 400025

U65921MH1995PLC212675

Group
Company

NIL

Axis Asset
Management
Company Limited
Axis House, 1st floor,
c-2, Wadia
International  centre,
Pandurang Budhkar
Marg, Worli, Mumbai
— 400025

U65921MH2009PLC 189558

Croup
Company

NIL

Axis Mutual
Trustee Limited
Axis House, st floor,
C-2, Wadia
International centre,
Pandurang Budhkar
Marg, Worli, Mumbai
- 400025

Fund

U66020MH2009PLC 189325

Group
Company

NIL

Axis Trustee Services
Limited

Axis House, 2nd Floor,
Bombay Dyeing Mills
Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar
Marg, Worli, Mumbai
— 400025

U74999MH2008PLC 182264

Group
Company

NIL

Axis Securities
Limited

Axis House, 8t Floor,
Wadia International
Cenfre,

Pandurang Budhkar
Marg, Worli, Mumbai
- 400 025

U74992MH2006PLC 163204

Group
Company

NIL

Axis Bank U.K.

4 Chiswell Street, First
Floor, London,
England, EC1Y 4UP

7554558

Group
Company

NIL

Freecharge Payment
Technologies Private
Limited

2nd  Floor, Red Fort

U74140DL2015PTC275419

Group
Company

NIL

A.TREDS Ltd. | A Joint Venture of Axis Bank Limited and mj
Corporate Office: 11" Floor, A3, Ashar IT Park, R
Registered Office: Axis House, Bombay Dyeing M

unction services limited | www.invoicemart.com
oad No. 16Z, Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane (West) Tel: 022 6235 7300
ills Compound, P B Marg, Worli, Mumbai — 400025 Tel: 022 43252525
CIN - U74999MH2016PLC281452



=] INVOICEMAR
D A joint venture of Axis Bank and mjunction

Capital Parsvnath

Tower, Bhai  Veer

Singh Marg, Near

Gole Market New

Delhi, Cenfral Delhni,

DL 110001

10. | Axis Capital USA, LLC | N.A. Group NIL -

1675 § State St Ste B Company

Dover, DE, 19901-5140

United States

="Ir‘ncluding 60 shares {0.00018%) held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited. (Beneficial
Ownership is with Axis Bank Limited).

\ {17{ A ty

A.-TREDS Ltd. | A Joint Venture of Axis Bank Limited and mjunction serviceslimited | www.invoicemart.com
Corporate Office: 11" Floor, A3, AsharIT Park, Road No. 16Z, Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane (West) Tel: 022 6235 7300
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e & t Axis Bank :

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr. no.| Particulars of Remuneration Shri Prakash Sankaran, | Total
Managing Director & Amount
CEO
1. | Grosssalary 108,464,815 108,446,815

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1941

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

2. | Stock Option 1
Sweat Equity 1
Commission E

- as %of profit
- others, specify...

5. | Others, please specify 15,49,540 15,49,540
Total (A) 1,23,96,355 1,23,96,35&1

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sr. | Parficulars of Remuneration | Name of Directors Total
No. Amount
Shri Rakesh |Shri Dipak Kumar
Makhija Banerjee
1. |Independent Directors 6,00,000 6,00,000 12,00,000
Fee for attending board/
committee meetings
Total (1) 6,00,000 6,00,000 12,00,000
2 5 Other Non-Executive = - -
Directors
Total (2) . 5 =
Total (B)=({1+2) 6,00,000 6,00,000 12,00,000

A.TREDS Ltd. | A Joint Venture of Axis Bank Limited and mjunction serviceslimited | www.invoicemart.com
Corporate Office: 11" Floor, A3, AsharIT Park, Road No. 16Z, Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane (West) Tel: 022 6235 7300
Registered Office: Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compuund P B Marg, Worli, Mumbai — 400025 Tel: 022 43252525

CIN ~U74999MH2016PLC281452
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Sl.no.

Parficulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Smi. Meenakshi
Agarwal,
Company
Secretary

Shri Vijay Dube,
Chief Financial
Officer

Total
Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

5,75,000 43,87,000

49,62,000

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
fax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission as % of profit

L6, ] BN N OS] | %]

Others

- 3.85,000

385,000

Total

5,75,000 47,72,000

53,47,000

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type

Section of Brief
the
Companie

s Act

Description

Details of Penalty/
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority

urt]

[RD/NCLT/Co

Appeal
made, if
any (give
details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty -

Punishment -

Compounding -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty -

Punishment -

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAU

Penalty -

Punishment -

Compounding o

For A.TREDS Limited

" 4
Chairman 42541753)

Rajiv

Place: Mumbai

Date: 19t April, 2022

A

AN

m|

A.TREDS Ltd. | A Joint Venture

Corporate Office: 11" Floor, A3, Ashar IT Park, Road N
Registered Office: Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills C

Prakash Sankaran
Managing Director & CEO (DIN: 08581871)

of Axis Bank Limited and mjunction serviceslimited | www.invoicemart.com

CIN —U74999MH2016PLC281452

0. 16Z, Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane (West) Tel: 022 6235 7300
ompound, P B Marg, Worli, Mumbai — 400025 Tel: 022 43252525
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of A. Treds. Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of A, Treds Limfted (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at Mareit 31 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow

“Statement for the year then ended, and notes tg the financial statements, including a sumumary of

stgnificant accounting policies-and other explanatory information,

In"our opirion and to the best of our information and-according to the explanations giver to us, the
atoresaid financial staternents give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the. accoluiting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 3 . 2022, its
loss and its cash flows tor the vear ended on that dite. '

Basis for Opinion

We condueted ovr audii of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10} of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described 'in:the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Enstitute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirenierits that are relevant to

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act-and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfillegd our other-ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that thie audit evidence we have obtained js sufficietitand appropriate to provide. a

basis for our audit opinion onthe financial statements.
Other Information

The Com pany’s Board of Directors is.-respansible’ for the other informatiss. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial staterients does not cover the other mformation and we do notexpress any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In. connection with our audit of the financial Statements, our. responsibilisy is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whéther such other information (s materially inconsistent witt
the financia! statements or our knowled ge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 16 be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have perfornied, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nithing to report in this regird.
Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Boaid of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation-of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the f nancial
position. financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting

1&&9@165 generaily accepted in India, including the Companies (Accaunting Standards) Rules, 2006

e . . = o - . X y ¢
a’\.\.{-ﬁ'sz"cl;ﬁr{%lgfed} specified under section 133 of the A ct, read with the Compani es(Accounts) Rules, 2014,
| "-\ )
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rtered Accounian
his |esp0nsﬁn'i|ty also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records. in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frands and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate dccounting, policies;. making

judgments and estimates that aré reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and eompleteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparaticn and presentation of
the financial statements that give a wrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
dué to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as apphtab!e inatters related to going concern and using the.

going concern basis of accounting unless management eithier intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no-realistic alternative but to do-so.

Those charged with governance are-also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or erior, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance; but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements ‘can arise from fraud -or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions:of users taken oii the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordancé with SAs, we exeicise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemeni of the financial stafements, whether due to
fraud. or érror, design and perform audit pracedures responsive to those mks,_and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to previde a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstaterment resulting from fraud is h;gher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the: overr:de
of internal control,

«  Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to degign audit procedures
that .ére appropriate in. the circumstances. Under seetion 143(3)(7) of the Act; we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectivéness of such
controls.

+  Evalvate fhe appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasenableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management:

+  Conclude on-the appropriatengss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerfainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant. doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a. going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are req vired to diaw attefition in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements. or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion.-Our conclusions are based 6n the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events ar conditions may cause the Company to
cease fo confinue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure dand content of the financial statements, including the
,«;':‘?;@“\ disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying tr ansactions -and-events

T

1 a manner that achieves fair presentdtlon
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among. other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the aidit dnd significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all-relationghips and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, retated
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiréments

1. As required by the Companies (A uditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Céntral
Government of India in terms of sub-section {1]) of section 143 of the Aet, we give in the
“Apnexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3-and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the iniforimation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary. for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 1eq uired by law have’ been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit-and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial ‘statements comply with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 {as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Compaties {(Accounts) Rules, 20 14;.

() On the basis of the writien reprc:_s_en‘ia_tions'rec'eived from the directors as on March 31, 2022.
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the direéctors is disqualified as on
Mareh 31, 2022 from being appoirited as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

{t) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate’ Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report;

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid
/ provided by the Conipany to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V ta the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule |1 ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion-and to
the best.of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;
ii.  The Company did not havé any long-tenm contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were apy material foreseeable losses;

iii,  There were no amounts which weré required to: be transferced to the Tovestor Education
T and Protection Fund by the Company.
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*The management has represented that, to-the best of its knowled ge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or Joaned or invested by the company to or in any other persons or
entities. iiicluding foreign entities (“Intermediaries™, with the vnderstanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly orindirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied i any manner whatsoever by or on
bebalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaraiitee, secuority or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The managément has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no furids
have been received by the company from any persofis.or entifies. including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the uriderstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the compary shall, whethet, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons-or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the:
Ultimate Benéficiaries; and '

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to. believe that the:

représentations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatemerit.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartéred Acéountants. o
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Jitendra H. Ranawat.

b . d / § :’, {\.—
fUJ . -
1{;(.mumam x|
Membership Number: 103380 | ﬂ/}\ ’%

UDIN: 22103380AHIRTV3520
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Partner

cet.
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Date: April 19, 2022
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Annexure ‘1° referred to in paragraph under the héading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements™ of our report of even date

Re: A.Treds Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal couise of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

{D)(a)(A): The Company has maintained properrecords showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,

(i)(a)(B): The Company has maintained proper recofds showing full particulars .O'F-intan_g_ib['es assets.
{i)(b): Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

{i){(c): There is no immovable property held by the Company and accerdingly, the req_uirem'ent'to report

on clatise 3(i)(e) oF the Order is not applicable to the Compary.

{i){d): The Compary has ot revalued jts Property, Plant and Equipment ot intangible assets during the
year erided March 31, 2022.

(i)(e): There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under: the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(iiY(a): The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to. report on clause 3¢ii}(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii}(b): The Company has not been sanctionéd working capital Hmits in excess of Rs, five crores in
‘aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requitement to report-on clause 3(it)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(iii)(2): During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firm s, Limited Liability Partaerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the réquirement to report on clause 3(iii}{a) of the-Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(iii}(b): During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report en clatise 3( ti)(b) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.

(ii)(c): The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other partiés. Agcordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(e) of the Order is.not applicable to the Company.

(iti)(d): The Company has not granted loans or-advances in the. nature of loans to companies, firnis,.
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

(iii)(e): There were no loans or advance ini the nature of loan. granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partherships or any other parties. Accordin gly: the requirement to repart on clause (e} of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
A,ffﬁ— J!J();@:;\f e Company has not granted &n y loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
’ f ﬁ?ﬁ\\ﬁg without specifying any terms or period of repayment tocompanies, firms, Limited Liability
X
1 I
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Partnerships.or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on ¢lause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable 1o the Company:

(iv}: There-are no-loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Counipanies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requireinent to réport on
clause 3{iv) of the: Order is not applicable to the Conpany.

(¥): The Company has: neither accepted any deposits fram the piblic nor accepted any amounts which
are desmed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 1076 of the Companies Act and the rules
made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi): The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods er provision of such seivices as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii}(a); The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
ingluding goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state-insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, value added tax, céss and other statutory dues applicable to it, According to the infermation
and explanations given t¢ us and based on audit procedures performed by-us, no undisputsd amouits
payable in 1je_spe_c_5t' of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a-period of more than
six months frem the date they became payable. The provisions relating to duty of custom and duty of
excise:are not applicable to the Company. '

(vii}(b): There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees” state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, val ue added. tax, cess, goods and service tax and other statutory dues’
which have not been deposited onraceount of any dispute. The provisions relating to customs duty and
excise duty are not appli¢able to the Company.

(viil): The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded: in the,
books. of account, in the'tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{viii} of the Order is not applicabje to the Company.

(ix)(a): The Company did not have any outstanding Joans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any
terider during the year. Accordingly, the requitement to report o clause ix(a) of the Order:is not
applicable to the Company.

{(ix}(b): The Company has not been’ declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
gavernment or any govermuent ._'auth_ority.

(ix){c): The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement-
10 réport on clawuse (ix)(c) of the Order is notapplicable to the Company.

(ix)(d): The Company did not raise any funds during the year henee, the requirement to report on clause
(iX)(d) of the Otder is not applicable to the Company. '

(ix)(e): The Company daes not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture: Acc-Ording]y, the
requirément to report on clause 3(ix)(e} of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(ix)(f): The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Conipany.

{x)(a): The Coempany has not raised any money during the vear by way of initial public offer / further
,,Wblic_crffer (including debt instriments) hence, the requirement to report on clause. 3(x)(a) of the Order
IO ¢ ke '

. applicable to the Company:
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(x){(b): The Company has not made any preferentiat allotment or private placement of shares fully or
partially or optionaily convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to-
‘report on clause 3()(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. .

{xi)(a): No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)}(b): During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section [43 of the:Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by secietarial atiditor.or-by us in Form ADT—4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

(xi)(c): As represented to us by the mianagement, there are 110 whistle blower complaints received by
the Company durihg the year.

(xii): The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on'tlause 3(xii)a), 3xid)(b), 3(xii(e) of the Order is notapplicable
fo the Company.

(xiii): Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections {88 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statetnients, as required
by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions:of section 177 are not applicable to the Company
-and accordingly the requirements to report under elause 3 (xiii}yof the Order insofar as itrelates tosection
177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)(a): The Company has an internal audit system commensurate -with the size and nature of ifs
business,

(xiv)(b): The internal audit reports.of the Company issued till the date ‘ofthe audit report, for the period
under audit have been consideréd by us.

{xv}: The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
conrected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3{(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a): The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report-on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

{(xvi)(b): The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR} from the Reserve Bank of India as per the’
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(xvi)(©): The Company i not a Core’ [nvestment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Resefve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable tothe Company.

(xvi}{d): There is no Core Investment-Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report
on.clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii): The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs. 16,946,023 In the
immediately preceding financial year, the Company had incurred cash losses amounting to Rs.
86,231,874,

(xviii): There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
/{ﬁ?@f ( Kiri:m'ent 16 report on Clause 3(xviii)-of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
Vs al)
Hey \“ \
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(xix): On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements information
and explanations given to us and of the basis of financial ratios; ageing and gxpected-dates of realization
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management pIa'n‘S and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing hias come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as'on the date of the audit report that Company
is not capable of meeting, its Tiabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year froni the halance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to-the future viability of the Company. We further staté that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor-any assurancethat all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company-as and
when they fall due.

(xx)(a): Provisions of Section 133 of the Companies Act are not applicableto the Company. Hence; the
requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xx)(b): Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act are not ap_plicab:le to the Company. Hence,
the requirément t& répoit on clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batlibei & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICATL Firm ReBistration Number: 301003E/E300005

b C 0
per Jitendra H. Ranawat #
Partner

Membership Number: 103380
UDIN: 221 033_SDAHIRTV3520
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: Aprit 19, 2022
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF A. TREDS LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Chiuse (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited thie internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of A.Treds
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statemerits
of the Company for the yéar ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
‘based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential compotents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intérnal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT?).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating eftectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 6f its
business, including adherence to.the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compléteness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable tinancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Aiuditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contréls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “*Guidance Nota™)
and the Standatds on Auditiig, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the éxtent.applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Gnidance Note:
require that we comply with. ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtdin reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal finangial controls with reference to these financial statements-
was established and mairntained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves pal.'-for'm'ihg' procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reférence to these financial statements and thejr operating efféctiveness. Cur
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with referénce to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a' material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficiesit and appropriate to.provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference.to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of findncial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance:with generally accepted accounting: principles.
ﬁfﬁ@pg&n}/‘s internal financial controls with reference to financial Stateinents includes those policies

,;f‘?;:g:;;“;fa”ncf'png&edurss that { 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
e
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fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions: of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are béing made only in accordance with autliorisations of management and directors of the
company; and {3} provide. reasonable -assurance regarding: prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or dlspomlmn of the company's assets that could havé a material effect
on the financial statements.

'I’nherent Li_mitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reférenceto Financial Statémenits

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
~including the possibility of col]uslon or improper managemerit override of controls, material
misstatements due fo error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reférence to tinancial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reférence to financial statements may become inadequate:
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our epinion, the Company has, in al] material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial stafements. and such internal finarcial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively asiat March 31, 2022, based on the internal centrol over financial
reporting criteria established by the Comp'mv cons:dermﬂ the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the TCAL

For S.R. Batlibei & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regjstration Number: 301003 E/E300005

~ /?}3\ u‘f;}w\
S h_'.-*}‘-\\'
L._h.‘/ RS
f i \‘F«‘?
T . ~— it MUsna, ‘t
T)'Er Jitendra H. Ranawat R \ A ,;'
Partner S AP, {é—d
Membership Number: 103380 {\\f’t““;gggl‘
UDIN: 22103380AHJRTV3520 ez

Plage of Sighature: Mumbai
Date: Aprit 19, 2022



ATREDS LIMITED
Balancesheet as.at 31 March 2022

Thc megompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As_ Per currgport of'even date

Far 8. R. Batliboi-& Co. LLP
TCAT Firm Registratiod No.:301003E/E300005

JRarticulars | Notes’ :31 March 2022 31 Majehi 2021

’ ) {Amount in Rs.). (Amount in Rs.)

|t EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

|Sharetiolder's fands _ o
Share-capital 3 65,00,00,000 65,00,00,000

|Reserves-and surplus 4. (54,77,48,262) (49,91,17,811)

: Nqnet__:_l_njren_t lisbilities .

{Long term provisioris 5 76,45,277 63,18,636

|Othernon current liabilitiés 6 20,68,780 23,27.280
Current liabilities

|Tradeipayibles
-Total ?ut.siandmg-dues of micro enterprises and small | . 313.052 6,37,693
enterprises 7 '

-Total outstanding dues of éreditors other than miiero. 1.40.66.710
enterprises and sniall-enterprises. T s 1,03,65,585
Other current Habilities - 8 432,927,591 1,91,36,420 |

1Short ferm provisions 5 1,01,61,690 91,38,097
Total 17,97,99,838. 19,88,05,900

1L ASSETS :

‘INon-cirrent assets
Plant, property and equipments & Intdrigible assets 9

_I’.lah'_t;'propéﬂyland equipments. 94,97.666 1,38;83,811

Tntangible assets 1,13,97,211. 2,64,63,037

‘Capital work-in-progress 1,22,31,797 21.05,56%

Long térm-loans and advances 10 2,84, 33 579_ 3.76,55,632

" {Other non current assets 11 13 34.375 13',3_4-,37_5

- |Trade receivables 13 3,02,307 8,63,330
Current assets _ _

Short term loans and-advances 10 '5_5_,_24,-?45- 55,39,967
Cash and bank balances 12 9,90,71,710 10,30,37,325
Trade receivables 13 : 1_5'20';(}'6_,248' 79,22,854

'. To.ta_l 17,97,99,838 19;’88!05'!900'

. Summary of significant accounting policies 2:1

For and on ‘behalf of the Board.of Ditectors

Rajiv .&é’;d-

Chartered Accoustanits

Director
DIN No: 02541753
Partncr M /
Meinbership No..:-- 103380
_ Vijay Dube
‘Place : Mumbai Chiéf Financial Officer.

Date :'19 April 2022

K\kash"'sﬁnkaran

Managitg Director & CEQ
DIN: 08581871

vh’
Meerinkshi Agarwal
Company Seceetary




A. TREDS LIMITED

. ‘Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March: 2022

|Particulars

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenits.
Asper-ourreport.of even date

Notes|  For the Year ended For the Year.ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
( Amounit m Rs) ( Amountin Rs)
Revenue from operatioris 14 15,65,61,993 7,09,39.319
Other income. 15 '35.29.137 . 32,84.356 .
Total income 16,00,91,130 | 7,42,23,675
Expenses:.
[Employee benefit expense . : 16 12,96,34,612. 11,97,87,703
[Depreciation.and amortization expense 9 2,99,24,671 2,27,13.919
Other experises 17 4,91,62,298 4,37,39,187
Total expenses 20,87,21,581 18,62,40,809
Profit/(Loss) before tax {4,86,30,451) (11,20,17,134)
Tax expense:.
Cutrent tax - -
Total Tax - -
Profit/(Loss) after tax (4,86.30,451) (11,20,17,134)]
Earnings-per equity share : Nominal value of share
Rs.10/- (31 March 2021: Rs.10) annualized.
Basic' (1.08) (2.88)
Diluted (0.75) (1.90)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2:1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For §. R. Batiiboi & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No:: 301003E/E300005

P

‘Chartered Accoutitants jiv-Andnd rakash Sankaran
'_]Z)iir_ec_téTd Managing Director & CEO.
- DIN'No: 02541753 DIN; 08581871
- L A% , o AV /
per Jitendra H. Ranawat %)Q/'/ MV\A
Partrer . .
Membershlp No. - 103380 Vijay Dube Meenakshl Agarwa

Place : Mumbai
Date_: 19 April 2022

Chief Financial Officer

Company: Secretary




A.TREDS LIMITED )
‘Cashi llow statement for the yéar ended 31 March 2022

For the Year For the Year
£oded énded-

Particulars 31 March 2622 31 March-2021

{Amountin Rs,} (Amount in:Rs.)

A:. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,35,93,365 9,62,70,824)
‘Net profit-béfore taxation (4,86,30,451) (11;20,17,134)
Adjustments for :

“Depréciation and amortization.expénses 2,99.24 671 2,27,13,919
Loss.on sale of asset. - -
Lease equilization, 46,642 53210
Provisioa for Gratuity- 12;59,888 15,22,634
‘Provision for Compensated abscnces 453027 14,75,497
fnterest:on income tax refund (1,03,173) (50,873)
Interest income on fixed deposit (30,39,947) {32,33.483)
Operating Profit before working capital changes. {2,00,89,143) (8;95,36,230j|

Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisiotis. 6,37,119 {(13.47,911)
Increase/ (Decrease) i’ Other current liabifities 2,41,56:168 (5,62,618)
Increase/ (Decrease) i Other non current liabilities {3.05,142) 53210
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade receivable (35,22,370) {19,83,560)
‘Intreasef (Decrease) in Trade payables '33,76.484 1,20,346
(Increase) Decrease in Non-current loans and advances- 92.22,054 (22,21,516)
(Increase)f Decrease in Current joan-and advances- 15,54,450 10,53,004
(Increase)/ Degrease.in che_r non current assets - -
Cash generated from Operating activities 1,50,26,620 {9,4425,185)
Direct taxed paid (net of réfind) (14,36,255) (18,45,639)
Net cash used in Opérating activities 1,35,93,365 (9,62,76,824)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,75,58,980) (34,07,211)
Purchase of fixed assets {2,05,98,927) (86,40;694)
Interest received 30,359,947 32,33,483
Net cash useé in Investing activities {1,75,58,280) (54,07,211)
{C. cASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - 10,00,60,000
|  Issueof shares - 10,00,00,000
Net-cash from/ (used in) Financing activitics - 10,00,00,500
Net (Decrease)/ Increase'fi'n. cash and cash equivalents during the
periodfyear : {39,65,615) (16,78,035)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period/year 10,30,37,325 10,47,15,360
Cash-and cash.equivalents atthe end of the periodiyear 9,90,71,710 10,30.37,325
For the Year . For the Year
_ ended eded
|Particulars “31 March 2022 A1 Msrch 2021
{Amount in Rs.) {Amount in Rs.}
{Cash in hand 6,828 - 30
- [Clieque intransit . _
|Balances with banks: _
4~ On.ciirrent. accounts 1,46,45,534 65,54,266
-}~ Deposits withi original-maturity of less than 3 months. $,44,19.348 3,02,47,468
— Deposits with original maturity of more-than.3 months = 6,62,35,561
| Total 2.98,71,710 10,30,37,325




Notcs

1'The'above: Cash Flow Statement has: been: -prepared under the "Indirect Method™ as set ut in'the Accountmg Standard {AS 3)~
‘Cash Elow Statemerits' notified undér Section 133 of the Compamcs Act, 2013, read. tegether with rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Riles, 2014 and the:Companies: (Accounting Standards) Amiendmenit Rides, 2016..

2 Cashi and Cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises.of cash in harid, current account with babk-and fixed deposit with
bank.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The-accompanying noies are an integ_ra] part of these financial statements.
As per our repost of even date
“For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. R.-Batliboi & Co. LEP
TCAI Firm Reglstratlcn No.301003E/EINH00S

“Prakagh Sankaran

Managing Director & CEO o
DIN: 0858 187 &
. ww:w/
per Jitendra H. Ranawat- “N )
Partnier “Vijay Dube Metenakshi Agarwal

Menibership No. - 103380
Place : Mumbai.
Date : 19 April 2022

Chief Finascial Officer Company Secretary




A.Treds Limited

Motes forming part of the financial stateménts.
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Cdrp‘arhtéfinfumaﬁon

A:Treds Limited. (the 'Company‘} is publlc company ‘domigiled in India. The. principal. actmty of the Company s to carry on, busmess ‘of settitig up-and.
operatmg oFTrade Receivable Disconnting System under Bayiment and Settlemerits: Systems:Act, 2007.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally acceptecl accourmng principles ini India. (]nd:an GAAP) under the historical

‘cost Sonvention o acerual basis, The Company has prepared these financial statements to: .comply i all material respects- with- thie: accounting standards
"notli' ed . under- section. 133 of the Companies Act 2013, tead together-with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts). Rules 2014 and Compamas

(Accoivting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The f nancial statemerits hatve been prepared on an-acerual basis and under the historical:cost canvention.

S_i__ghil'il:m‘lt accounting policies

Presentation and disélosure'of linancizl statements

Useof estimates

The preparation of the financial statements § in: conforrnlty with the Indian GAAT réquires the managemient'to miake estimates aiid assumptions that affect
the reported amoums of assets and liabilities, reventes and expenses and disclosure of cantlngent liabilities at the-end-of reporting period. “Altheugh these

estimates are based oh'the management’s best kiowledge of cubrent evénts and actions, uncertainty abou-thisse Assumptions.and estimates could result in.
the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts-of assets or l_labllltles in future periods. .

Current-non-curientclassification of assets/ liabilities

As tequired by Schedule 0T, the Comgpany has classified all its. assets / liabilities into current 7 non-current portion baséd on the-time frame of {2 months
from the date of financial statenients. Accotdingly, assets/liabilities-expected to be réalised £ settléd within 12 months fom tie ‘date:of financial statements
are classified as current and other assets/liabilities are classifies as agn-current:

Rénnue recognition

Reévenue is-recognized to-the extent that it.fs probable that the economit. benefits will flow to the’ Compariy and the tevenue can be reliably measured The

 following specific Tecognition criteria must also be-met: bcforc revenue is recagnized;

; Onboarding Féc;Transaéiion Fee and Annual Fee

Onboarding Fee is.one time fee and is recogized at the time of onboarding of Buyer, Sellér or financier: Transaction fcc is recurting in nabire and is
recognised on fime proportion: ‘basis aver the of lenure of transaction. Transaction fees: received ﬁ'om sellers is recognised upfront on the date of tfansaction;

Tha Company follows fecogriition of arinual fee on time propostion basis over the tenure of one year
- _Onboardl_ng ‘Fees, Transaction Fees:and Appua] fees are included under *Income: from Operations" inthe Statement of profit and loss:

iv

. Interest

Interest incormie is recognized.on a time proportion bams taking into account the améunt obitstanding and the applicable interest rate, Interest is included
unider the'head 'Other Inconic”in the Statement of profit and loss.

Tauglhle assels -

Fixed :dssets afe stated at. cost, nét off sccumulated’ dépreciation and accumulated - impdirment losses, if-any, The cost comprises the-purchase price,

bommnng costs it capitalization eriteria are met: and difectly attributable cost.of bringing the asset toits worktng condition for its infended use, Any tiade:
discounts and febates are dediicied in arriving at the purchass price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added. fo its book value. only if if increases the future beniefits from the existing asset beyand its
previgusly assessed standard of performance. All other- EXpEnses oft. existing fixed assets, lncludmg day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure-and cost
ofreplacing ‘parts, are charged to the:Statement of profitand loss for the period during’ whtch such expenses are incurcéd.

Gainis-or losses arising from-derecogition-of fixied assets are measured a5 the difference bétween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the.
assét and are recognized in.the Statement of prof it and foss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible nssets
Intangzh]e assets acquired separately ‘are measured on initial Tecognition-at .cost. Following initial recognition, intangible' assets are carried: at cost less

accumulated amortization-and dccumuitated impairment losses, if apy. Internally genétated intangible assets, excluding cdpitalised development costs; are
not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the: year in which the expenditure-is incuired.

Inmnglblc assets are amortised ona straight line. basis aver the estimated useful sconomic fife: The Company uses a rcbuttable presumption that the vseful
Tife-of-an intarigible asset witl not excecd-ten years from the date wheh 'the ‘asset is available-for ise. 1f the persuasive evidence. exists to the. affeet that
usefu] life of an intangible asset exceeds ten years, the Company amortises the intangible-asset over the best estimate of its useful life, All cthier intangible
‘assets are assessed for impairment whenever there.is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
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Depreciation on Tangiblé asset / Amortization of intangible asset

.Deprecnatzon on fixed assets is. caleulated on stralght-lmc basis. using: the rates arrived .at,"hased on the useful lives eshmmed by the. mafiagement. The
-company has. used the followmg rétes to provide depreciaticn on its fixed assets

Deprecsat_lop has been provided using the- fu]__lowma.esnm_ated u_s_eful ]l\_ures_ i

“Particiars ‘Usefil Life estimated by the imanagement{sams o5 specified in Schindule 11 of the Comipaaizs A=t,20£3)
Office Equipment 5Years

Computers 3 Years

Servers ) 6 Years

Softwares - -5 Years

Fomitwes & Fidires. 10 Years _

Leasehold Improvement: 9 Years (Over lzase period)

The residizl values, useful lives and methods of depreciation.of | property, plant ‘and cqulpmcnt and intangible assets are-reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectwely, if appropriate;

Depreciation on assets:sold during the year is recognised on a-pro-rata basis to-the Staiement of profit-and loss ill the date‘of sale of_asséps.

impairment of {angible and intangible gssets.

The Compary assesses at each reporting date whether theré s an. indication that -on asset may be impaired. If any indication éxists, or when .dnnual
impairmerit testing for an asset is required, the Company esfimates the asset’s: recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount i the higherof-an asset’s
net sefling price and its valué.in use. The recoverable amount is determiined for an. individual asset, unlessthe asset.does not generate ¢ash inflows that are
la.rge]y independent of those from other assets .or groups ‘of assels, thre the: carxymg amotmnt of-an asset exceeds it recoverable -amount, the asset is.
cnnsldcrcd impdited and is writtert down to its, recoverable maunt; in ‘pssessing value in ise, the estlmated Future.cash flows are discourited to their present
value using 2 pre-tax discount rate that reﬂects current market assessments of the time value of money-and therisks'specific to the asset. In deterrnining nef
setling. price, Tecent market transactions ‘are taken into accotint, if availablg, TEn6 such transactions, can be identified, an- approprlabe valuafion model is
used. Afer lmpairment, depreciation is pravided-on.the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life,

A assessment is made at each reporting date as to-whether theré is any-indication that previously recognized impairment losses may 1 no longer-exist or may
have decreased. Tf such indication exists, the: Ccmpany estimates the asset’s recoverable amount: A prev:ously Tecognized impairment loss-is reversed. onily
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine:the asséi’s recoverable-amount since the last. impairment loss was- recugmzed The revérsal
is lithited 0 that the carrying amount: of the asset does niot exceed-its recoverable amount, nor- exceed the camying: amount that' would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for: the. asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized:in the Siatement of profit
and loss unless e asset is-carried at a revaltied amourit, in which case. the reversal is treated as a revatuation increase.

Lieases

Lenses -where. the: lessor effectively Tetains substantiaily all the risks and: benefits of ownership of thie. Teased item, are classified -as operating iéases.
Operating lease payrirents.are recognized as:an expensé.in the Statement’of profit-and loss-on a strmght—hne bagis over the lease tersh,

Retirement Benéfits

. Retirement and dther employee benelits:

Retivement’ benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined: contnbuncn scheme, The. company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to-

the provident funid. The company recognizes contribution payablc to the, providerit fund scheme s an. expendlture when an'employee reriders the related
SEI'VICE

" 'Gratl'llt)"

The:Compaity provides for the geatuity, 2 defined benefit retirement. plan coveting all employees, The plan providés-for lutp sum payments to.employees
upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serying for the. stipulated year mentioned under “The Payment of Gratuity. Act,
1972°, The Ctinpany aceounts for lisbility of fisture gratuity benefits based on an external actuarial valuation on projected tinit credit method carried out for
assessing llablhty as atthe report_l_ng_dat_e

Actparial gains and fosses arising from experience adjustmenis and change in:actuarial assumptions are Tecognised in' the statemeént of profit and loss in the
‘period inwhiéh they arise.

Leave availment

Eamed leave can be carried forward- and availed. during the ‘tenure of the emp[oyment as-per the HR policy Anyacoumulated leaves' in-excess of the

spectﬁcd days in subsequent years are bound to ]apsc The company treais accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-

term employee. benefit for measurement purposes; Fhis liability is, recognised based ‘on -an eiterial actuarial valuation using. the projected unit credit
method.

Actuarisl gains/logses are immediately- taken to the statement of profit and loss and are.not deferred. Thecompany presents the leave as.a currént iability in

. thebalance-sheét, ti-the extent it decs not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months afier the reporting date. Where company has the

unconditional Jegal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a- -period: ‘beyond 12 sonths, the sarme is presented as non-carrent liability.
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ix. Income taxes
Tax expensc comprises current and. df:fem:d i Currenit incomestak is.measured-at the. amount expected fo'be paid té'the tax autherities in accordance
with the Theome-tix Act, 1961 enacted in 1r1d1a and. tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the: Company operates, The tax rates and
tax Taws ‘used to computé the amouint are’ those thiat are ‘enacted or subsmmlvcly ¢énacted, at the: reporting date. Current iitcome tax relatmg to-items.
-tecognised ditectly;in equity is recognised in equity-and not in the statement of profit and loss

‘Deférred income taxes-teflect the. impact of tlmmg gifferences between taxable income and accounting income onglnatlng duting the current year and
“reversdl-of timing differénces for the eailier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax’rates.and the tax dws endcted or substantively.endcted at the:
reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to items- recogmzcd directly in equity is: recognized in equity and not'in thc Stal.mnent of profit and Toss,

Deferred tax liabilities afe recognised for all taxable’timing, differences.” Defeired tax assets fre rccogmscd for deductible timing differences only to the.
extent that there is reasonable-certainty that sufficient. future. taxable income will be.ayailable sgainst which such.deferred gk asséts ¢an be réalised. .In
situations wheére the Company has unabsorbed depreciation orcarry forward tax losses, all defetred tix assets are: n:cugmsed only if there is virtual cerainty
supported by convincing evideice {hat they can be realised against fture taxablé profits;

‘The camying amount-of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each repoiting date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred taxt asset to-the
extent that.it is-no longer:reasonably certain or vidually certain, as the: case may be, that sufficient future taxablé income will be available: against whick
deferred tax asset can be redlised.-Any such write-down is-reversed to the-extent that it bécomes reasonably cértain or v;rlually certain, os the case fmdy b,
that: sufﬁc:ent future-taxable income will be available

At each reportmg date, the: ‘Company re-assesses umecogmsed deferred tax-assets, 1t | reccgms&s unrecngmsod deferred tax asset to the extent that it has'
become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case- ‘may be, that sufficient fiturs taxsble income will be. available agamst which such deferred tax
assets can be realised.

x Ei:lrnings_-p_er share

Bagic earings per share i is calculated by dividing;the net profit-or loss For the perlod attributable ta equity shareholders: {after deducting attribistable, taxes)
by the weighted average nuriber of equity shares cutshandlng duiring:the: perlod

For the:purpose.of calculating: dituted eatnings per share, the-net profit-or loss for the period “attributable ta equity shareholders and the weighted average
bumber of shares outstanding during theé period are adjusted for the effects of all difutive potential equity shares.

xi. Provisions.

A prov:szan is.recognized when the: Company has a present obligation-as aresult of past event; it is probable:that 1in outﬂow of resources will be requlred
1o seitle the obligation, in respect of which a reliablé estimate.can be-made of. the- -amount of obligation. Provisions are not discounted 16 its. present value
and ate determined based on best estinate required to:settle:the obligation at-the l_‘e_po_rhng date. These are reviéwed at éach reorting date and adjusted to,
reflect the current best estimates.

xii; Casl:and cash equivalents

Cash and-Cash Equa]ents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at, bank including; fixed depOSIt with original maturity
perlod ‘of three nionths-and short tértn highy. liquid investments with ant‘original ma{urll:y of thiee months or less,

xiti. Contingent liabilities.

A contingent liabiiity is 2 possible obligation that arises from past events whosé-existence will be.cenfimed by the oocurrence-or non-cecurrence of'one or-

' inote uncértain future events beyond the caritrol-of the Campany or a-presetit: obligation that.is not recognized because it is not probable that an.outflow of
résources will be required to setile the -obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases. where there i3 a llablllty that cannot be
1ecopnized because it cannot be measured reliahly, The Company does nof recognize a contingent liability but discloses its éxistence in the financial
statements.

‘When there is a_pqs_sit]le ebligation or a present abligation inrespect of which the likelihood of outilow af resources. is remote, no provision or disclosure is
tade..




A. TREDS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the yéar ended 31 March 2022

3; Share capital
31 March;2022 31 March, 2021
g {Amount i Rs.) {Amuitt in Bs.)
huthamed share l:ap(tn.l
5,00,00,000 (3§ March 2021 : 5,00,00,000) Equiy Shares ofRE10
each. 50,00,00,000 50,00/60,600
20000000(3le11202! 20{)00000)969%Non—€mm-]anvc o
Compulsorily Convertible Preference: Shares of Rs,10 each
o ) 20,00,60,000 20,00,00,000
Issided; subscribed and filly paid-up shnres share capital
4, 50 00000(31 Murch- 2021 4,50, 00 000) Equity Shms of Rs. lﬂa"- .
each '45,00,00,000 45,00,06,000/
2,00,00,000 (31 March 2021  2,00,00,006 ) 5.69% Non-Cumulative
| Cornpulsorily Convertibile Preference Shares of Rs. [0 each
206,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
Total issited & subscirbed share capital

{a) Reconciliation of the sharcs cutstanding ot the beginniig and at the end of the réporting peried

Eoquity shares 8 Preference shares
— 31 March, 2022 31 Marely, 2021
Nes (AmountloRs) Nos (Amgunt fa Ra.)
At the beginning of the Year 6,50,00,000 65,00,00,000) 5,50,60,000 55,00,06,000
Add: Issued during the: Year -1 | 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000]
Duistanding at the eid of the Year 6,50,00, 100} 65,06,00,800] ____ 5,50,00,000] 65, 00,00,100|

(b) Terms/ rlghts attached to equity shares and preference. shares
The Comgpary has onfy dnic class of équity shares having par value'of Rs:16. per: share,'Each holder of equity. shisites is entitled to-ong vote per ‘Share The dividend, if &y, is proposed by'the.

Bard of Dirdctors and i subject to the approval of the shareholders.in the:ensuing Annusl General. Mectitig. In the-event of liquid on of the Company, the holdees of cquity shares will
b entiiled to receive remadining assets of the Company, after distnbution of all préferenfial imourits, The distribution will be & in proportion e the numher ofequiity shares hield by the
shareliolders,

“This Company has only one class of *9.69% Nan-Cumglative Compiilsorily Convertible Préference Shares having face value of Bs,10 per share, The shiares will be convertible into equity
shares at a date niot Later than 10 yedrs freim the date of allotment, The shares will be convertible at the-option-of the Ct::mpau),r in the ratio will be'1:}

{c) Sharex held by holding/ ultimate holdifg compuny andfor théir subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity shares Sssiied by ile Compary, sharas held by it holding comparny, ultimate lialdinip company snd their subsidiaries/associates are as befow:
31 March, 24922 31 March, 202t ’
(Amount in Bs.) {Amount in Bs,)
Axis Bank Limited, the holding company and-its ' 7
3,01,50,000- (31 March 2021: 3,01,50,000 shares) equity shares of
Rs:10/- eash 30,15.00:000 30,15,00,000
Axis-Bank Limited, the holding company
1,34,00,000 {31 March.2021; 1,34,00,008) 9.69% non cumulative
compulsury convédible pref shares of Rs 104 each o
13,40.00,000 13,40,00,000
[d} Petails of shareholders holding move than 5% shares in the Co ¥.
31 March,2022 . ) 31 March, 2421
Name of the sharehulds Nas %% Nas %o
Axis Bank Limited, the holding cc 1y and its B
3,01 50000(31 ‘March2021 ; 3, ot, 50000 shares) equity. shares of
Rs, 10/ ench 3,01,50,000 6T% 73,81,50,000 67%
Mjunction SE:I'\"IGES Limited
1,48,50,000-(3 | Marcti 2021 ; I.43 50,000 shases) equity-shares of ) .

Ra:10/- each . 1,48.50,000] . 3% 1,48,50,000) 33%
Axys Barik antc:[, the holding company and its nominées
1,34,00, 000 (3F March 2021 : 1,34, 00,000 ) 969% fdn, cl.nnulah\'c
compulsory convenible p:ei'shm of Rs. 10/, each

1,34,00,000 67% 1,34.00,600 67%)
Mjanetion Services Limited ]
66,00 ,000°(31 March2021 : 66,00,000 '9.69% non cumulative

pulsory convertible pref shares of Rs. 10+ each
66,000,000 33%| 66,00,000 333




A. TREDS LIMITED .
Notes to fliianciol staterfients fof the yoar.ended 31 Marih 2022

it, the ahove $herel

As pcrrccnrds of the Company, inclading its- reglsm' ofshmholdrm' members. and other declaratipns received fmm shareliclders r pirdi i beneficial holding
represents both legal'and beneficidl ownerships of shaces. . ) )
{e) Detzils'of shares hetd hy promaoters
' = ' 31 March,2022
I ‘% Change during
|Promivters Name. | Equity-shares - Preference shares %%.of tatal shaves - theyear
| Axis:Bank'Liinited -3,01,59.000 1,34,60,600 67% -
Mitmetion Services Lid -1,48,50,000 66,00,000. .33% -
31 March, 2021
N % Change during
Pramoters Namie. Equity shares Preference sharea % of total shares the year
‘JAxis:Bank Limiied 301,580,000 | 1,34,00,000 67%. -
Miunction Seivices Litd 1,48.50,000.| 66,00,000 3% -
4. Reserve & surplus
Profit & Loss Account
31 March,2022 31 March, 2021
{Amaunt in Rs.} {Amount In Rs.y
Surpliis/ {deficif) in the statement of profit and loss {49.81,12,811} (38,71,00,677)]
Loss for the. year {4,86,30.451) (11,20,17,134)
|Netdeficit in the of profit & loss {54,77,48,763) (49, 01,17,811}
[Total Réserves & surplus’ i (54,77.48,262)| (49,917,811
5. Pravisions -
: : ‘31 March,2022 31 Mareh, 2021
{Amouit in Rs) (Amount.in-Bs.} (A_n_i__n;!‘mt inRs) | {Amountin Rs)
- ) Lerp terim Short term Long term Stiort term
|Provision for bonus B - 90,70, 704 - ‘30,060,000
Provision for gratuity 41,36,954 3,63:350 37,75 695 4,98,386
Provisicn for compénsated absences 29,08,283 7,27.596 25,42,541 6,39,7E1
I'Fotat 76,445,277 ,01,61,694 §3,18,636 91,38,697|
\ 6, Gther non curren_"til.i.nlﬁiiles
31 March,2022 31 March, 2021
{Amoust in #s.) {Amiunt.in Rs.)
(ther non current lizbilifies - 50,68, 780 23,27,280.
Tatal 20,658,784 23,237,280
T, Tluﬂc, yabl
‘31 March,2022° 31 March, 2621
(Amount in Bs.) (Amount in-Rs.)
Total outstanding dues of micrd enterprises and seiall énterprises 313,052 6,37,693
Total outstanding dues of creditors other then micro eriterprises and ) C
small enterprises 1,40,60,710 103,563,585
Total 1;43,79,762( 1,18,03,278
Trade payahle apeing schedule
As.at March2022
Pariiculars st & for following periods fram due date of payments:
Less than 1 year 1.2 years 23 years More than 3 years “Tnial
MEME 3,13.052 - - - 3,13,052
.O_ﬂj_ers . 1,25,77,388- 4,89.322 - - 1,40,66,710
As at March 2021
Par ] Onitstandiag for it ing periods from due date of payicnts Total
Less than'1 year 1-2 yenrs 2-3 years. Moreihan3 years |
MEME 637693 - - - §,37,693.
Cithers 96,23,536. 6,653,593 76,456 - 1,03,65.585

“There are no disputed tnde payables during the year
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.A. TREDS LIMITED

Notes o financial itatenients for the year entfed 31 March2022:

8: Oeher enrrent lidbitites

31 March,2023. 31 March, 2021
{Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rx
Daue to holding company- "Axis Bank Limited" 96,12,957 56,12:459
Due to athers 693,158 255879
{Statitory-dues 21,838,957 16,821,066
Uniearnisd réveine 3,04,18,086 1,14;47,180
|Othéreurrent liabilites - 379433 1,09,836
ATota) 4,32,92,591]|- l,9_1,36,420|
10.:Loans and advances [Unsecured, itered pood)
: 31 March,2022- 31 Mnl‘th;-ll)?.!.
{Amount in Rs.) {ABsount I Ra)) (AmouniinRs} | {AmountinRs} | .
| Lang Term. Skort Term Long Term Shart Term-.
Eoans and advances ] ] o
Pripaid expenses 3isor 28,63,837 21,570- 2547320
Accrued interesi- ) - 8,74354 - 5,21,009
T.D‘S& Advance tax 86,_1'1,! gS 15,33 428 20,83.014 18,96,512
HGST input credit! Service tax input 1,97,50,403 ’ - 35545048 -
[Qttrer advances - 2,47.326 575,126
[Total. 28435579 55,24,045 3.76,55.632 55,39.567
11.Other non current assets
) 31 March,2022 31 March, 2021
(Asisountin Rs.) A{Amsunt in Rs)
Sécurity deposit 13,234,375 13,34375
Total 13,34 375 13,34,375:
12.-Cash and bank bl
31 March, 2022 31 Marih, 2021
. {Amount iix Rs,) {Amotnt in-Rs.)
| Costrasid ciish equivalents o :
Cash an hand - 6,828 30
Balances with banks: )
On’curent aceounts 1,46,45;534| 65,54,266
- Depasits with original, of less thari 3 monihs 34,1548 30247468
Other bank balances: . .
~ Deposits with remaining maturity.of less than 12 manihs - 6,6235,561
Tatal 980,71, 718 10,30.37,315
_13.Trade receivables
'3_1_'_B'Ixrtﬁ;2022 ‘31 March, 2021
AAmount in Re) {Amount in Re.)
Noo-current: ) ’
4] d, considered doubifisl S2TAT0 49,283,736
Provision for doubtfu! debis and bad debts* (2,25,163) {41,20,456)
Total {A). 3,02307 |- 8,63.350
Cukrent
Unsecurid, considered good 1,20,06,248 ‘7922854
Toisal (B) 1,.20,06,348 79,122,854
Tatal (A) + (B} i 1,23,08,555. 87,856,184
* Bad debits of Re, 77,147 & Ra: 32,57, 127 is wrilten off in Y 21-22.and FY 20-21 respectively,
‘Debtors ngeing schedule
As at March 2022 :
|Particatacs Rt ing for following periody from due dote of payments
Less than 6 moaths. |61 hs =% yr- 1.2 years 2-3¥7s more than 3 yrs -Tatal
Undisputed trade receivables, considersd good 1,20,06248 | - A - 1,20,06,248
Undisputed trade receivables, considered doubtful - | 4,502 77,147 - 527,470
Espuled irade receivables; considered good - - - - -
Diisputed trade feceivables, considered doubtful - - - B -
As at March 2021
" [Particutsis Duistanding for following periods (rom duc dute of payments _
Lass than 6 months _ i6'monihs -1.97 1-2 years 23T mare than 3 yrs Total
Undispined trade réceivables, considered 7922854 .- - - 79,22,854:|
Undisputed trade seceivables, tdered doubifisl ~ 17,26.659 3257027 v 49,83,786°|
Disputed irade receivables, considered good- - : L - - I

Disputed trade receivables. considered doubtful




‘A: TREDS LIMITED-

Notes to ﬁr_tar_aé;i_nl statements-for the }"ear-'end'ed 31 March 2_62_2_

14, Revenue from operations

3I'Marchi, 2022

- 31 March, 2021

(Amount inRs) . {Amount in Rs.) -
Onboarding charges 1,43,18,446 111335714
Ttansaction charges 14,20,44,720 5,94,01;,078
Arinual chiarges 198,827 272527
Other charges - 1,50,000
{Total 15,65,61,953 7,09,39,31%
15; Other ircome .
31 March;2022 31 March, 2021
_(Amount in Rs)) {Ambint in Rs;)
Intérest income on hank deposits '30,39,547 3233483
Miscellareots receipts - 386,017 -
Interest ¢m income tax refund 1,03,173 50,873,
Tatal 3529,13711 . 32,84,356]
16, Employee hiencfits éxpense
31 March,2022 31 March, 2021
(Amount In'RBs;) {(Amount in Ks)
Salarigs, wages and bonus 12,07,61,390 11;35.00,569
Coniribution fo providéent funds 55,77.759| 30,84,009
Staff welfare expenses 1,87,184 2,04,994
Gratuity expenses 12,59,888 15,322,634
Compensaied absences 453,227 14,75,497
ESOP cxpensés 34,55,164 -
. |Total 12,96,34,612 11,97,87,703
17, Other expense.
31 March,2022 31 March, 2021
{Amount jn Rs.) {Amouat in Rs:)
Travelling-and conveyance’ 41,05,336 13,40,970
Professional fees 1,08,10,496 72:93,927
Rent, rates-and taxes 78,96,379 75,57,957
Share issig-expenses - 5,000|.
|Business premiotion 210,569 16,916
Software expenses - 65,55,838 73.30,865
Tiformation technology expense 56,67,767 55,64,144]
Telephone expenses 14,52,201 1665288
IDirectar fees. 12,00,000 12,006,000
Transaction charges 32,36,605 6,77,304
Elestricity expenses “12,57,055 10,97,075,
Printing & Stationery 2,586,065 89,701
IProvision for doulithiil delits writien back. (6,38,166) 620,545
[Bad debis-written off 77,146 32,57,127)
Security services 10;13,481 10;45,549
Insurance expeciises 235424 2,88 718|
Membership & subscription fees 87,159 1.61,454
House keeping charges 16,294,830 16,64, 847
Anditor remuneration ¢ Refer details-.below_) '20,64,124 20,34,627
Capex-yitten off - o
Repair & maiitenance 13,280,114 4,26 425
Nisc.expenses -5,65,875 4,00,746
Total 4,91,62,298 3,37,39,187
Audit remuncration 31 March,2022 ‘31 March, 2021
' {Amount in Rs,) {Amoiit in Rs.)
Audit fee- 15,25.500, 15,50,000,
|Litnited review 5,25,000 4,50,000,
Oiut of Pocket expenses 14,124 34,627
20,64,124 20,34,527
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17 ‘Leases
Operating Lease:

The Company has entered into-agreements in the nature 6f cancellable. arid non-cancellable ledse'/ lesave and license ‘agresments
with different fessors / ficensors for the purpose of establishment of office-preinises and office equipments; These.are generally in

the nature of operating léases / Jeave and licenses,

Generally the leass-term is for uptor 9. years with the escalation clause of up' to- 15% for office premises for every 3. completad

years. There afe no restrictions imposed- by lease arangements.

Future minimum rentals payable for premises under operating leases are as follows:

Particiilars 2021-22 2020-21
(Amount in Bs} | { Amountin Rs)
Minimum lease payments ; .
Notlater thar one year- 72,58,530 (65,59,954
Later than one year but-nof latzr than five 1,85,81, 480 2.46.16,436
Later than five years 57,222 317,238
T.ease charged for the year “76,63,237 73,69,747
Piiture minimurm rentals payable:for office equipment under aperating Jeases are as follows:
Particulars 202122 2020:21
{Amount i Rs) | ( Amount in Rs)
Minifnum lease payments '
Not later than one year 1,86;500 1,353,000
Lease-charged for the year 1,86,500 1 ,35_:,00(]
18 Earnings per share (EPS")
Particiilars 202122 - 2020:21
{Amountin Rs) | ( Aimount.iiRs)
Net Profit / {loss) afier tax 8630450 {11.20,17,134)
Net profit / (foss) for cﬁic‘ula‘tmn-or._pasic and diluted EPS (4,86,30,451) (11,20,17,134)
Weighted-average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 4,50,00,000.00 3,88,35,616
Effect-of dilutioni '
Convertible prefernce shares 2,00:00,000 2,00,00,000
Welghted average nember of eqmty shares in-calculating diluted EPS 6,50,00,000 | 5;88,_35,‘6__] 8
Basic carnings pershare (1.08) (2.88)
Diluted earnings per share (0.75) " (1.90)

19 Details of dizes to micro and dméll_ enterprises.as défised under the MSMED Act, 2006

The principal amount and the interest due thereon rémainiing unpaid to any supplxer as ai the-end of each accounting year

Particifars

2021-22 202021
{ AmountinRs) | { Amount in Rsy
Principal ambunt due to. micre.and small enterprises 3,13,052 637,693
Interest due on above - -

The Company -also has ot receivéd-any claims agalnst interest outstanding amount due 0 any vendor registered under Micre,

-Sraall ancl Mediuin Enterprises Development Act, 2006, The. information .25 required to-bé disclosed: wnder Micro, Smiall-and
‘Medivin Enterprises Development Act.2006 (Act) his been determined to the extent such parties have been 1dannﬂcd on the

basis of information-available with the Company.

20 Estimated-amount of contricis remaining to-be éxecuted on capital account and not provided for:
Particufars. 2021-22 ‘202021
| (Amountin Rs) | (Ameuntin Rs)
Commitment far-addition/acquisition of software- 14,98,797 29,08,830
JCommitment for-acquisition of other capital asset: . : - -




A. Treds Liriited

Notes forming part o tlic financial statements

21 Gratvity and other pustemployment benefit plan.

Llablllty for Gratuity and.compensated leave absence has been- dctcrmmed by an actuary, appointed: for the purpose, m confurmny
with the principles set out:in'the Accouriting Standard 15 (Revised) as préschibed: by Companies. {Accnummg Standards) Rules, 2006,

the-details of which are as-under:
1 Gratuity

A. Statement oF profitand loss.

Net employee benefit expénse recogitized i the.empt (AmountinRs)
Particulars __Gratwity {(Funded) Gratulty (Funded)
 March 31,2022 ‘March 31,2021
Interest dost 3,26,801 2,59,258-
Current service.cost 11,%6,569. 10,24,706
Expected return-on plan assets £5,804) (15,685)
Actuarial (gain) 1oss on obligations (2,58,078) 2.55:355.
Net gratuity cost 12,59,888 15,22,634
-Actial réturn o plan.assét (58,580) (1,22,227)
-B. Balanee Sheét
Renclit assctliability- [Amount in-Bs.).
Particulars. Gratuity (Funded). Gratuity (Funded)
Maiceh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of funded obligation 51,65,026 39,63,71%
Fair value of:plan asscts (64,642} {76,925)
Plan (asset)/Tiability. 51,00,384" - 38,86,793
€. Change in present valee of defincd benefit obligation
(Amount in Bs) (Amount inRs.) |
Particulars Grituity (Funded) | Gratuity (Funded)
Far-the year ended Fot the yeir ¢ndid
Maréh-31, 2023 March 31, 2021
Present value-of the obligation-as at the beginning of the year. 39,63,718 29,505,558
Interest cost _ 326801 259258
Currerit service cost 1196965 10,24,706
Benefit paid . .
Liabilities asumed on acqusition/ {settled on divestiture) - {3,87 288}
Actuarial {gain} loss on obligations {3,22.462) 1,18,443
Prescntvalue of the obligatidri-as at the end of the year 51,65,026 39,63,718
"D Change in fair value of plar assets
o {Amount in-Rs.) {Amount in-Bs.)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) ‘Gratuily (Funded)
For't_hc__yéar ended . | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2020
Opening fair valug of plan asset 76,925 1,98,152]
Expected returri on plan assets 5,804 16,685
Actusial (gain)/lasses (64,384) (1,38,912)
Contributions by smployér _ _ 46297 T
Asset acquired on acquisition/A{(distributed on divestiture) . -
Closing faif valic of plan asset 64,642 76,925
"Expected employer contribution next year 2,00,000 2,00,000




E.Expe tience adjustments

{Amaount in Rs.) (Amount.in Rs.) (Amovntin Rs.) |
Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded) Gratuity (Funded) Grituity {Furited)
* FoFtheycarended- | Fortheyearended | Fortheyear ended
_ March 31, 2020 Mareli31,2021 | Mareh 31,2022

Defined benefit sbligation, 29,50,599 39,63,718 51,65,026
Plan assets 1,989,152 76,925 64,642
Surplus/{deficit) _ (27,51,447) (38,86,793) (51,00,384)
Exp..Adj. on plan lizhilities 1,22,606 43,092 {1,13,736)
|Exp.-Adi. on plan assets (9,08 ,586) (1,38,912) {64,384)

The principal ass_umptinns used-in determining obligations for the Company’s plans are shiown below:

(Amonnt in Rs.)
Assumptions Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Funded)

' March 31, 2022 ‘March 31; 2021
Discount rate 6.90% p.a 645% pa
Increase in'comperisation cost. 10,00%p.a, 10,00%p.a.
Employes fumover _ N
21 to 30 (age.in'years) 24,00% 24.00%
31 10.44 (age in years) 14.00% 14.00%
4510 59 (age in.years) 8.00% 8.00%
II' Compensated absences’

: {Amount in Rs.)
Particuiars March 31, 2022 ‘March 31, 2021
Present valué of obligdtions 36,35,879- 31,82452
Expénse Tecopnised it the Statement of Profitand Loss 4,53,227 14,75,497
Discount Raté (p.a.). '6,90% pa 6.45%
Tnerease it compensation cost 10.00%p.z. 10.00%pd,
Employee turnover
21 10 30 (dge in years) 24.00% 24.00%
31 10 44 (age iti years) 14.00% 14,00%
45 10 59.(age ins years) 8.:00% 8.00%
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‘22 Redated Pnr;_y_-bisciésufe
~The related partics of the Company are broadly classified as:
Halding Company - AxisBark Limited (ABLY-

‘Mr. Prakiash Sankaras (Mnnag:ng Dircetor £ Ch|et‘ Executive Offi ccr) (‘MD& CEO)
MEF, _\"‘uay Dube (Chief Financial Offtesr) (CFO)
Ms. Meengkshi:Agarwel (Compaay S 1y) (CS)

] Ky Management Petsonnel

Fellow Subsidiarizs . Ax:s Capital. I,muled {ACLY

’  Asgel ment Compaity Limited (AAMC).

Axns anate Eguity Litnited CAPELY

AxisMutaal Fund Trust rmited (‘AMFI‘J

Axis.Trustee Services Limited fATSLY

Az Bank UK Limited (ABUKL)

Axis Tinanea Limited (AFL?

Axis Secusites Ltmltad (ASLY)

“Freeckarge Paymem.‘[‘ tinologies Private Limiled (FETPLY) -
Acaciyst Solutions Private Limited { ASPL)

Subsidisries of fellow subsidiaries compeniés  Asis'Capital USA LLC {subsidiary of Axix Capital Limited)

Investing Company Mjunction Serviees Limited (MSLY)
The details of trenssctions and bal peyable tofrecsivable df the Company with ifs.related parties for the year ended. 31 March, 2022 are given belaw
Tranazction/N. of Relaticnylip Holding Comy ¥ | Manage: T ing Company Fellow Subaidiaries Grind Total
: Personnel _
Traesections during the year ended 31 .
|Marchzo22 '
Assets
Proceeds from fixed deposil 2.73,41,216° |. - - =X 2T340,2156 |
{10,77,38,501) - - - {10,77,38,501)
|l11cn S - - c 7
Intesest on fixed deposil - 30,39,947 . - - - 330047
(32,33,483) - - - - (3233,483)
It from cherpes - 60,655,316 - - - 60,65316
(13,32.638)° - - - (1332,638)
Amscunt received for Capitnl Infusio - n " . "
(5,70,00,000) - (3,30,00,000) - A10,00,60,000)
: Reimbursemeéit for expeiises 50 85,865 244379 5,060,000 - 67,534,744,
. {58,38,465) - (69,644} {5,07,000% - (69,08,109)
JBeimbursemerit fur. expenses ) _-
(T" putati cait of ME of WD & CED) 1,05,46,147 - - - 1,05,46,147
’ {517,29,234) - = - {97,39,234)
Reiinburéémient for expenses -
| (Deputation cost ather employee) 24323227 - - - 2.4323.227
£2,70:31,591Y - - - .(2,70.31,591)
ESOP. exg . 34,55,164 . . - B :34,55,164
|Saliiy {CFO). — 41,438,358, i - . 4144358
. L (38,82,084) - - - (38,82,084)
Salary (CS) = 536,724 : - - 436,724
: - (324,193} - - (924,193}
Dritstainding balsnce arat
31 Marchi 2022
Other Payable 96,12,952 - - - 55,012,952
. (56,95, 712} - - . - {56,95,712)
Balatices with banks in current account: 146,45, 534 - - - 1,46,45,534
{65,54.266) - - - A55,54,266)
Fixed deposit §,52.93, 703 - - . : - -8,51,93,70¢
37404043 - : -1 - 0,74,04,043)
Ohiet rectivables. - 500,000 - 500,000
N N (5.00,000 i - {5,00,000)




ATREDS LIMITED
Notes T nrm'iig part of the fizancial statements.

Notes
1y Related party: mlnnnnsh:ps have been identified by thie nmnagum:nt and relied upon by the auditors,

3) Figures for.the period énded 31 March 2021 aré disclosed in biickels.

3 n

23 During: the year, | the holdmg company has issued stock. options to certzin.employees on deputation and on payroll of the Company. Annual charge wwards the stock options
amounting to Rs. 34,55,164, hasbeenw:nuntedasanexpensembwksof_ pany znd is 1 ble 1o hold 15T comy
24 Ratios
31-03:22] 31-03-21
a Curreit fakio _In 257
b, Trade fectivable wirhover ratio . 1484 | 910
¢. Trade paysble honover fatio 1234 | 648

Currerit raiic has been calculated by dividing total current asaséts by total current liabilities.
Trade receivable turnover ratio has been caloutated by. dividing net sales by average trade reoeivables,
Trade payables mrnover ratio hagbeen caleulated by dividing net sales by average lra.do payables as there is Tio prirchase mmayer,

Dieht eqmly mlm, Dbt service nuvemgu fatio, retur on equity silit, invenilory turnuver fatio, riel capital Inrnm'er mtio, net p‘mf‘t ratid, retuin on capital employed ratio‘znd

retuim on d muuamnot fiplicable [ the Company

Un-amariised income grouped under. current: Iwbnlnuu has mcreased by 165% with growth in business volumes, resuing in change of current liabilities by 72% as against
" muted growth in corvent assets, Fhus curent retio has moved 16 1.72n curvent finanéial year as agging 395 i previous year:

H eIy

Avertge trada receivables and average trade payables for FY22 hias incieased by 5% and 16% respeciively, Revénue from 4 ape considored as Baée for-computing *Trade
receivable trnover rific™ #nd, "Trade pnynhle tumayer tatio® has grown by: 121% in current financial year, résulting in yearly mmcmcntm ratio by 63% and iy respecbvely

15 Intangibtes under develoy % apeing schedule
As at 31 March 3022
’ - ibtes unde: devel . A in Intasigitles unites developraent for x period of ] Total
e TR TR Leos thun Tyear | 1-2 yeaps. 2-3 visrs' more than 3 years
Projects in progress 12,231,797 - N - . 12231797
{Projects tmporarily Suspended - - . = -
As at 31 March 2021
1 ibles under devel ¢ Amount in Intangibles undev develdpment for a peviod of . i ~Total .
& L Less than 1 year 12 years 2-3 years more tian s years
Projects in progress 478 570 - - 1,636,600 2,105,570
Projects temipbrarily suspended N N By - -
25 Revatuation of plant, property & eqpiipment and fnlangille assets:
The Company has not revalued its plaﬂl. prop & equif and intangible-assets in currens year and: previous year:

27 As l‘.he globzl p::n:lmmc COV{D 19 contimes to spread, the menagement has assessed the intemat and external inlormation up ta the date nl‘ approval of thesé financial
i and concluded that there Is oo material impact of Covid:19 oir f_he Company’s ﬁuure e

Tl:.e Code an Social Seiurity, 2020 (/Cide’} relating ta employee benefits during employ asid post-employmient benéfits rectived Presidential assent in September 2020,
The Code has beett published in the Gazette of India. However, the dateon which the Codé will come into eﬁ"eq tias not Been notified dnd'the final rulesfinterpretition have not
vetbeen 1ssuec| The: Company will Assess the :mpm of the Code when it comes, info effect and will tecond any related impact in the pediod t.bn Code bacomes éffective.

29 Deisils of Benanyi Froperty held
There &re 1o o dings intiated or pending against the company forholding any benamj propenty undi the Benami Transaclions (Prohibition} Act;1988 and rules miade
thereunder.: : - . - Rl A o0 ] o

30 Borrowitigs from bank ard finzticial institutions
The Company has not takensay bomrowing from banks orfifiancial iistitutions on the basis of secusity of éutrent assets.

31 Willul Defuulier. ) _ o .
The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial instituton or other lender,

32 Relationship with Struck olf Companies

The C _ had ne jons with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560.0f Comjanics Act, 1956,

‘33 Compliance with r of layér. of companles’
‘Since the Company’ dws mx. have any suhsnimy, the provision of section 2 clause 37 of the Act, read with Companies (Restriction on number. of Layers) Rides, 201‘? isnot
_2pplicable to the Campary. .

34 Undischased income
The Company. s ot !mve any unreounled traneaciion in the bools of accounts dlat has been sumendered ‘or disclosed as iivcome &unng theyéarin the 1ax assessmenits under
the Encome Tax Aet, 1961 (such 2, seatch of survey or any other relevant pravisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961}




ATREDS LIMITED
Wodes part af-the financial ot

35 Uhtilisation of borrewed funds sind sharé yremmm

) or p ..'.iulyu _Secllﬁl}"él’lh(

{A) Corapany.has not advaniced.of foancd or invested funds 10.any other porsons of entities, including foreign entities (T diari
like to or'on b&ulfofﬂmtjlhmaw Beneficidries;
By Ccmpany has not received any funds from Ay persons or entities, including Foreign edtithes (It inci $orp fided any g ., security or thé like to or on behalf

of the Ultimats Beneficizries;

36, Cryptn Cumnq« or Virtual Cumncy
The Compmy has pat traded or invested in crypto currency of vlrn.lal u.lrrcncy during tie urrent and previous financis! year,

" 37 Previous yearigures

Previous year ﬁgs_.lr'es'have been tegroupedireclassifiod wh ry, to. coitfirtin to the turrént year's classification, .
Suramary ofmgml'canl counti

The accompanying netes are &it integeal pm of the fnanitial statemeats,

As perwrreportofevcudm

“For§: K. Bailiboi & Co, LLE
CAIFimm Registr'agi';')No.: 301003E/E300005

Chariered Accountaits.

)

rakuh

Manng:nngmctuf&CEO

21

For znd oir hehalf of the Board of Directors

A

Sankaran

el Jitendra B, Rasiwat DIN; 08581571
Partner v
Membarship No: -+ [03380 i
Place : Mumbai . W
Date. : 19th April, 2022 -

Vifay Dube Meenikshi Agarwal

‘Chief Findncial Officer -G par

Secretary
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